
Bancroft City Council
Monday, January 21,2026

Meeting Minutes of the Mayor and City Council for Bancroft, Idaho

Roll call showed the following council and staff members present:
Jessica Vawser, Trevor Parsons, Jessica Thurman, Michael Ackerman, Mayor Perry and Clcrk Swensen

othcrs in attendance: James Ackerman, Ilric christensen, Taralee christcnsen

Call to Ordcr: Mayor Perry called the meeting to order at 8:00 p.m.
Pledge: Mayor Perry

Item: 1 Agenda
Cm, Jessica Vawser made a motion to accept the agenda as stated.
Cm, Jessica Thurman 2"d the motion. Motion passed 4-0.

Item: 2 Appointment of Council President
Mayor Perry would like to appoint Cm, Jessica Vawser to the position of council president.
Cm, Jessica Thurman made a motion to appoint Jessica Vawser as council president.
Cm, Trevor Parsons 2"d the motion. Motion passed 4-0.

Item: 3 Department Head Assignments
Mayor Peny asked council which departments they were comfortable or interested in being over. Council
discussed the depa(ments and agreed to assignments. Clerk Swensen will update the list of assignments.
Cm, Michael Ackerman made a motion to approve and update the new departmcnt head assignments.
Cm, Jessica Vawscr 2,d thc motion. Motion passed 4-0.

Item 4: Illectrical Panel Bid Review
Mayor Perry and Cm, Ackerman inspected the control panel at Memorial Park well due concerns and a
largc difference in estimates from contractors.
Cm, Ackerman stated thal there were loose wires causing multiple burn spots in the cabinet. Onc of the
rnain wires had loose connections and was getting hot which caused burn spots in thc panel. The terminals
necd to be replaced and thc wire needs to bc rcpaired. Thc repair consists olcutting thi wire back, using
compression crimps and putting hcat trcat over the top. The soft start or variable frecluency drive that
starts thc pump up slowly seems to be fine with no proven failures. At this point the ioft start does not
need replaced but thc city should purchase a back-up soft start in case of failure. Cm, Ackerman likes the
estimate from Watt's Up Electric due to being similar to the issucs they saw when inspecting the system.
It will be a big savings to the city if they do thc recommended repairs and thcn have a backtft softitart on
hand. Mayor Perry read the other estirnate and explained his concems to the council. Thc othcr cluotc ts to
cornpletcly replace the wires and other parts that don't appear to have issues. Some olthc itcrns that leotl
rcplaced were not listed and the wire listed was incorrect. Cm, Ackerman and Mayor perry suggested the
city hirc Watt's Electric due to the description of findings being closely similar to thcir inipcciion of
issucs' Cm, Ackcnnan noted that there might need to be a few additional items added oncc they get in and
analyze things more closely. Cm, Jcssica Vawser asked if all of this could have bcen avoided with routine
tnaintenancc. Crn, Michael Ackennan and Mayor Perry statcd that yes it could have bccn avoidccl by
routine checks and checking thc connections. Cm, Michael Ackeman statcd that the biggcst Iailure was
the loosc wires.
Cm, Trevor Parsons made a motion to hire Watt's Up Electric for the repairs (up to $5k) and have them
do routine maintenance going forward.
Cm, Michael (Mike) Ackennan 2nd the motion. Motion passed 4-0.



I{esidcnt, Jamcs Ackcrman asked if the city has checked the condition of the backup generator.

Mayor Pcrry statcd that it has becn overhcating due to bad vcntilation. Jamcs statcd that thcy uscd to open

all thc doors to give it propcr vcntilation but crcating public access is not ideal. Jamcs statcd that there

was supposcd to be a fencc built around it a long time ago. Council discussed possibly installing forced

air with a big lan to forcc the air through the room. Resident Ackerman stated that the transfer switch has

Cl"s in it allowing it to start the fan automatically when the generator kicks off. Council agreed to

continue reviewing this topic until they reach a decision. Cm, Parsons would like to hire someonc do

routine maintenance.
Rcsident. Jamcs Ackcnnan stated that he uscd to change the oil and filtcrs once a year on thc lift station

gcnerator. Mayor Pcrry noted that therc hasn't bcen any routine maintenance.

Mayor Perry informcd council that there is a generator in the Potter shop they will look at more

thoroughly.
Mayor perry will talk to Watt's Up Electric about finding a backup soft start and cooling system'

Residcnt, Jamcs Ackcman stated that the lift station is a hard start and could be part of the pump

problcms. 'l'he pumps used to alternate and had relays on thcm.
(Jm, Pursons doesn't want to see thc city put too much time and effort into what we have now, just keep

thcm running. Cm, Ackerman stated that keeping them running is the main concern right now. Cm,
'fhurman is conccrncd about spending money and then possibly getting a grant. Cm, Parsons stated that

thc city might be money ahead to just purchase a new pump. Mayor Perry remembcrs council discussing

thc idca of purchasing a ncw pump and having the old one rebuilt lor a spare. Cm, Parsons and previous

council membcr Irric Christensen remindcd council that a vendor told maintenance that parts for this

modcl are not availablc, obsoletc, and hard to find. Mayor Perry stated that calls are free and one person's

opinion is not good enough for him. Mayor Peny will make a few calls and instruct maintenance to make

a fcw calls as well.

Item: 5 Cornplaint Discussion
Cm, Michaci A.k"r-un ilformcd council that he made a complaint regarding noisc and parking. The I'rrst

complaint was filed in March and the other on Deccmber 30'h for noise; created on the 26'b and again on

January 9'h.

Mr. Ackcrman's neighbor was working on his semi-truck across the street with a welder and was banging

his trailer with a 20 h. sledge hammer. Mike stated he had to leave his home. Cm, Acketman played the

video he had taken of the incident.

Mike statcd that the city rcccived a complaint from him but proceeding to give his neighbor a green light

to continuc parking his semi-truck there after his March complaint was filed. Cm, Ackennan stated that

thcre arc 33 trailcri parked on public property right now makrng the city look unsightly and trashy. Cm,

Ackerman stated that the ordinance needs to be reviewed and re-worded.

Cm, Vawser stated that there are no solid ordinances to stop the resident from parking there.

Cm, Ackerman statcd that this is why the code needs to be reviewed. Cm, Ackerman stated that there is a

truck route recently piotted out by the city and those roads in his area are not on the truck route causing

the road damagc.

Cm, Vawscr.Lt.d thut it is not oonstant everyday use and that is what the truck route is intended for.

Cm, Ackerman stated that it is constant parking in front of his house. Cm, Vawser stated that there have

been no other complaints from other neighbors.

Cp, Vawser statedihat the city council has already discussed this issue in the past and came to the

rcsolution that nothing in the code prevents the resident from parking there. Council discussed giving the

resident the information and option of contacting Chem-Star. They may be willing to help out the people

with small busincsses.
Cm, Ackerman advised council that the problem here is people starting up a business when they do not

have the means to do so and are they are parking on public streets which is intruding on others.



Mayor Perry stated that there is a similar situation near his home. The property owncr is parking his
cquipment on the city property and he has plenty of room on his own land.
Cp, Vawser stated that it is hard to push someone out of business and not give them options.
Cm, Ackerman stated that he has personally given this neighbor the option of parking his semi-truck on
Mike's property and it would have 24-hour surveillance. His neighbor does not want to relocate his truck
due to convenience.
Cm, Ackerman stated that the semi is intruding on his space. Cm, Ackerman would like to make changes
to the existing ordinance. It would allow residents to have personal operative vchiclcs which are: trucks,
cars, ATV's and UTV's. Mike stated that the city docsn't need 33 trailers and semi-trucks parked on city
streets.
Mayor Perry asked council to look at the ordinances and be willing to go through thcrn go through thcm.
Cp, Vawser would like to ask the city attorney if Cm, Ackerman is legal to participatc with making a
motion or voting on this topic wherc he has personal involvement.
Cm, Vawscr askcd if there are time restrictions on noise. Rcsidcnt, Eric Christcnsen statcd that it is lrom
6am to l lpm Monday through Thursday and later on the weekends.
Cm, Vawser noted that this situation happened during the middle of the day and asked if there is a decibcl
limit, Eric Christensen stated that the limit is pretty high and sct by DEQ.
Cm, Parsons stated that he understands Cm, Ackerman's frustration, but we are a small mining and
larming community. Cm, Parsons commented that he sta(ed his business while living in the middlc of
town. Cm, Parsons stated that he got turned in for a similar issuc to this and his only complaint is that his
neighbor did not comc to hirn first. Cm, Ackerman stated that he has personally addrcsscd his neighbor
rcgarding these issues and his conccrns.
Cm, Ackerman coffrmentcd that Cp, Vawser has attempted to clean the cars and messes up lor appearance
reasons and this is no differcnt. Cm, Ackerman noted that the noise issue with his ncighbor is a separate
problem.
Cm, Ackerman stated that hc is not addressing the conditior-r olthe rcsidcnts' yards hc is just conccrrrcd
about what is on thc city strccts. Cm, Vawser asked wherc shc is supposcd to park lrcr snowmobilc trailer.
Cm, Ackennan stated that peoplc should have the rrcans to store their own items.
Cm, Ackennan stated that this is why he is suggcsting in his draft of the code to allow (POV) personal
operated vchicles but eliminate parting o{'semitrucks.
Mayor Peny would like to review the ordinance as a council and have further discussions.

Itcm: 6 Cm, Parsons asked if anyone has hcard about the donation for strcct lights fi'om Dcgerstrom.
Mayor Perry informed council that he will reach out to Casey Lce who is over donations at that mine.

Itcm: 7 Street Light Ii.eplacement-Rocky Mountain Power E,stimale Review
Crn, Mike Ackennan would like to replace the curent strcct lights updating to the I-ED larnps due to the
savings and reimbursemcnt plan offered by Rocky Mountain Power.
Cm, Ackcrmar-r brought a dcmo light to show council the diflercnce betwccn a yellow and rvhite light.
'l'he 3,000 is the watmcr yellow light and thc 4,000 is the white light. Cm, Parsons likes coming home to
the warmer lights and feels it's easier to sleep. Cm, Vawser also prefcrs the warm lights.
Mayor Peny likes the white look of the 4,000. Council would like to go forward with the application for
thc encrgy savings grant that would cover the entire cost of replacing thc lights.
Council votcd and decided to go with the 4k white light cobra style.
Cm,'l'rcvor Parsons made a motion to upgradc the44 city lights to the 4k cobra stylc lights contingcnl

upon having tl-rc lunds in tlic budgcl and/or receiving lunds h'om the grant.
Crn, Michacl Ackcrman 2''d the motion. Motion passcd 4-0.

Itcrn 8 lluilding Pennit
Jake Ilarfuss submittcd a building pennit for a hickory shcd.

3



Cm, Parsons cxplaincd that this building pennit was put back on the agcnda per council request due to

rcquiring thc applicant to get written approval from his neighbor to put the shed close to the fence and add

a gatc. 'l'hc city has rcccived a signed conscnt from the neighbor agrecing to the noted changes.

Cm, Mikc Ackennan madc a motion to approve the permit.

Cm, Jessical'hunlan 2"d the motion. Motion passcd 4-0.

Cm, Ackerman asked if a particular neighbor filed a permit before building a shed. Council confirmed

that a pcnnit was I'ilcd and approved by council before the shed was built.

Cm,'lrevor Parsons askcd about thc prcvious discussions rcgarding the pump bchind thc school. Therc is

not a backup gencrator at this point. Cm, Ackctman asked if anyone has sizcd up the gcnerator. City

council hadtalked about checking with the state surplus to purchase one they had. Council discusscd thc

nced o1'having a backup. Cm, Ackerman asked if there is an issuc with having both pumps on at the same

time. Eric Christensen stated that he doesn't think there is an issue with thern being on at thc samc tirne

bccausc thcy havc scParation.

Cm, Mike Ackcnnan asked if it should be initiated manually or an autornatic. Mayor Pcrry inlonled

council that thcrc is a nilitary style drcsel gencrator at Pottcr shop thcy will check bc chccking out.

l{esidcnt James Ackcmran recalls that gencrator in thc shop needing a fuel pump.

Cm, parsons suggested having Watt's Up Electric look at the generator and see if it is compatible with the

purnp housc.

Jessica'l'humran lecls likc the city should utilize thc rodeo grounds more and would like to plan a

sulllrcr city cvcnt. Cm 'fhurman was toid that a group was denicd using thc rodeo grounds. Eric

Christcnsen inlormcd Cm,Thurman that the individuals wcre not told they couldn't use thc rodco

grounds, but that that thcy would necd to pay a fee if thcir event was for profit and non-profit events are

Iree of chargc. I)uc to the cost ol power, garbage, maintenance, and clean-up the city put fees on the

grounds to hclp recuperatc some of the cost. There has been an issue with collecting those fees since this

[olicy changcd. Some groups arc willing to pay the fee without questions and others have been difficult.

b*, thrr,1ran would like to havc a spring or summer event and utilizing the grounds more.

Cm, parsons askcd what happencd to the tree burn. Eric Christensen infotmed council that all of thesc

cvcnts either pay for themselves or the city pays for them. People used to donate the chili and other items

but no ouc wants to help tlut tlr donate anymore.

Cm, 'frcvor Parsgns asked about the Tcuscher Square trec lights. Council discussed purchasing the higher

qruiity lights that are built heavy duty to prevent wasting money or replacements. E,ric Christcnsen stated

that thc city is on thc right track as Iar as getting good lights.

Clerk Swensen has made the annual $5,500 bank transfer to satisfy the DEQ loan agreement. The voice

rccorder is having issucs with going on and off. Council advised clerk Swensen to order another recordcr.

Council prescnted Eric Christensen with a 2O-year serice award and thanked him for all his hard work

and devotion to the community. Eric thanked the newly elected officials and comrtented that it is a

thankless job but they will do great.

Cm, Eric bh.irt"nr"n wants council to remember that patrons have good input and most pcople just want

to be heard.
Cm, Vawser asked clerk Swensen for a license fees and utility account balance report.

Mayor Perry has been looking for a fire chief. Cm, Thurman suggested her brother may be interested.

Mayor Pcrry will go visit with him this next week.

Cm, Thunnap is concemed about the city hall door being so hard to opcn and close during wintcr months.

Council discussed diflerent options. Mayor Perry will talk to a contractor about doing the repairs.

4



Cm, Thurman asked if the Fire Deparlment has what they necd. Cm, Parsons statcd tl-rat evcrything should
be up to date cxcept for CBA's. Clerk Swensen informed council that a large ordcr was placed a couplc of
months ago.
Mayor Perry went to the Potter Shop to sec what is there and found that it was extremely cluttered and
dirry. Maintenance have been instructed to get a dumpster and start cleaning up. The city can auction the
items with valuc.
Cm, Parsons stated that this has been discussed previously and some of the vchiclcs and equiprncnt just
need attention and sotne can be auctioned oll or salvaged. The dump truck nceds a transmission and the
lord truck just needs a battery. The post office has a box to dispose of the old flags. Cm, Parsons statcd
that a lot of the items wcre moved to this shop from the other one and most of the items just need to go to
the dump. Potter shop has a leak that needs addressed in the spring and a door has been takcn off
completcly. The city needs to put some hand lift rails on it. Cm, Parsons infonned Mayor Pcrry that thc
shop doesn't currently lock. Cp, Vawser stated that she caught a couple and tccnagers and adults going in
thc shop. Ilric Christenscn suggested putting up a camera sign. Cm, Mikc Ackerrran commcntcd that it is
illegal to put a camera sign up with no actual cameras.
Mayor Perry stated that they will get it locked up as soon as possible and he has instructed maintcnancc to
clean up the yard at the main shop.
Mayor Pcrry is concemed about the frcquent battery purchases. The batteries are bcing drained in cold
weather and the city does not havc enough battcry tenders. Whcn Mayor Pcrry stoppcd by thc shop
rcccntly thc ccluipmcnt wouldn't start due to dead batterics.
Mayor Pcn'y ,,vould like to install camcras at the shop for rnultiplc reasons and lbr protcction.
'l'hc durnping and separating junk during spring cleanup needs to be monitorcd.
Itcsident James Acketman commented that the roof on thc Main Shop is in bad shapc.

Cm, Jessic Vawser made a motion to adjourn.
Cm, l'rcvor Parsons 2"d the motion. Motion passcd 4-0.

Recordcd by: ds

City Clcrk /Debbic Swcnscn

4-r-JC
I)atc Acccptcd by Oouncil

5


